
 

 
 

 

CABINET 
 

4.00 pm WEDNESDAY, 9TH NOVEMBER, 2022 
 

HYBRID CHAMBER/ MS TEAMS 
 
 

 
Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  

  
This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 

 
All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being 

filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined 
above. 

 

 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department.  An item is 
subject to call-in within 5 working days from the date a decision is published unless 

reference to an item’s urgency is made at the time the decision is made.  Any member 
of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685 725284) or email 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

OPEN SESSION 

Strategic 

3. Corporate Well-being Plan, Recovery, 
Transformation and Improvement Plan and Self-
Assessment Report  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Executive 
 

5 - 10 

4. Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 - Quarter 2   

 To consider report of the Chief Executive 
 

11 - 26 

5. Temporary Change To Council’s Mileage Rate   

 To consider report of the Chief Executive 
 

27 - 34 

Portfolio 

6. Highways Adoptions   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer 
Neighbourhood Services 
 

35 - 38 

Information Reports 

7. Transforming Towns Programme for Merthyr 
Tydfil: Placemaking Grant Programme  

 

 To consider report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
 

39 - 44 



8. Aspire Shared Apprenticeship Programme and 
funding from the Cardiff Capital Region  

 

 To consider report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
 

45 - 48 

9. Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair   

CLOSED SESSION 

10. Exempt   

 In order for the following to be considered in 
private, it is suggested that the public be excluded 
from the meeting on the grounds that it involves 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined under Part 4 of Schedule 12A of Section 
100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 

11. Street Cleansing Service Transformation   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer 
Neighbourhood Services 
 

49 - 52 

12. Former Llysfaen Respite Home, Maesygarreg, 
Cefn Coed  

 

 To consider report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
 

53 - 60 

 
 
 

  
COMPOSITION: Councillors     G Thomas (Chair) 

                       A Barry (Vice-Chair)  
  
 Councillors     D Hughes, J Jenkins, M Jones and 

M Symonds 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
  

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

 
 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 
 
 

Corporate Well-being Plan, Recovery, 
Transformation and Improvement Plan and Self-
Assessment Report 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report covers three key areas of the Councils governance architecture i.e. the 

corporate self-assessment report, corporate well-being plan and our Recovery, 
Transformation and Improvement (RTI) Plan. 

 
1.2 We are currently in the engagement phase regarding the review of our corporate 

well-being plan, soon to move into the development of our well-being themes and 
objectives, before entering into consultation. 

 
1.3 We will use our self-assessment report (which is being presented to Council in 

November 2022) when developing our corporate well-being plan.  This is the first 
time we have produced this report as it replaces the Annual Performance Report due 
to changes in legislation (Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021). 

 
1.4 Good progress is being made in delivering our Recovery, Transformation and 

Improvement (RTI) Plan with 82% of the plan being complete.  It is envisaged that 
this progress will continue with closure reports of projects being taken to the newly 
formed RTI Board (which replaces the Improvement and Assurance Board).  With 
this in mind, we plan to move any remaining aspects of the RTI Plan to business as 
usual (within our existing governance arrangements) as part of the review of our 
corporate well-being plan.   

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 Progress regarding the Council’s Corporate Self-Assessment Report be noted. 

Date Written 25th October 2022 

Report Author A Mogford 

Service Area Policy and Improvement 

Committee Division Strategic 

Exempt/Non-Exempt Non-Exempt 

Committee Date 9th November 2022 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
2.2 The closure of the Recovery, Transformation and Improvement (RTI) Plan, done in 

line with the corporate well-being plan timeline with outstanding aspects being built 
into business-as-usual processes, be approved. 

 
2.3 The consultation on our well-being objectives following the engagement phase be 

approved. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This report covers three key areas of the Councils governance architecture.  These 

are the corporate self-assessment report, corporate well-being plan and our 
Recovery, Transformation and Improvement (RTI) Plan. 

 
3.2 Members will be aware that the Council is in the process of reviewing its Corporate 

Well-being Plan.  We are currently carrying out an engagement exercise which 
follows on from the production of our population needs assessment and well-being 
assessment.  These respond to duties under the Social Services and Well-being 
(Wales) Act 2014 and the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.   

 

3.3 We have engaged with our staff in completing our engagement but also using their 
connections to help us reach seldom heard voices.  We have engaged with 
numerous partners and organisations.  The Future Generations Commissioners 
have also promoted our engagement.   

 
3.4 We will use the findings from engagement as well as political priorities, data and 

lessons learnt to develop our well-being objectives and corporate well-being plan.   
 
3.5 This is also the first year that the Council will publish its corporate self-assessment 

report.  This replaces the annual performance report (APR).  Our corporate self-
assessment report meets a key element of the new Local Government and Elections 
(Wales) Act 2021.   

 

3.6 The corporate self-assessment report addresses Part 6 of The Act which requires 
each Council in Wales to keep under review, through self-assessment, the extent to 
which it is meeting the ‘performance requirements’, that is the extent to which: 

 

 It is exercising its functions effectively; 

 It is using its resources economically, efficiently and effectively; and 

 Its’ governance is effective for securing the above. 
 
3.7 In forming our conclusions in our corporate self-assessment report, we will consider 

engagement and consultation with our Council staff, local people (including People 
who fall under the protected characteristic groups (e.g. young people; older persons 
etc.), local businesses and trade unions (amongst others). 

 
3.8 The Act also places a duty to publish a report setting out the conclusions of our self-

assessment once every financial year. 
 

Page 6



3.9 Members will also be familiar with the Council’s Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement (RTI) Plan.  This was put in place as part of the work done with the 
Improvement and Assurance Board (IAB).  The Council has continued to deliver the 
RTI Plan since the IAB was stood down earlier this year.  The Council has replaced 
the IAB with an internal RTI Board (regulators invited every 6 months). 

 

3.10 The RTI Plan has become a key part of our transformation and improvement and as 
such has been incorporated into our Corporate Well-being Plan (approved by 
Council over the last two years).   

 

3.11 We have delivered 82% (October 2022) of the RTI Plan with additional closure 
reports expected at the next RTI Board (quarter 3).  Progress has been reported in 
our corporate self-assessment report.   

 

3.12 A critical element of the RTI Plan is the governance improvement programme.  This 
has seen us strengthen our scrutiny function and introduce our performance 
management and quality assurance framework (approved by Council as part of our 
corporate well-being plan).   

 

4.0 NEXT STEPS 
 
4.1 We will continue to develop our corporate well-being plan.  The next stage is to 

develop our well-being objectives and outcomes.  Following this we will enter a 
consultation period which will mean our corporate well-being plan will be developed 
in line with our Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP). 

 
4.2 We will continue to deliver our RTI Plan and present closure reports to our RTI 

Board.  When we meet our targets of delivery, it is envisaged that our RTI Plan will 
be closed and remaining planned actions or projects be included into business-as-
usual processes in our corporate well-being plan.  This could mean they will be 
considered alongside future transformation and improvement programmes. 

 
4.3 Our first corporate self-assessment report is being presented to Council in November 

2022 for approval.  This has been presented to the Governance and Audit 
Committee (24 October 2022).  If approved, the associated action plan will be 
delivered by the Council with regular updates being provided through reports to the 
Corporate Management Team, Governance and Audit Committee and to Cabinet 
Members. 

 

4.4 These next steps and associated actions support the mitigation of corporate risks.  
We will continue to monitor and report on our Corporate Risk Register. 

 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no specific financial implications identified in this report.  Any financial 

implications arising from the delivery of the plans described in this report will be 
presented to Cabinet/Council as appropriate, including potential options for funding. 

 
 
 

Page 7



 

6.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
6.1 
 Positive 

Impacts 
Negative 
Impacts 

Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 

Objectives  
4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 

Principles - How have 

you considered the five 

ways of working? 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 

(including Welsh 

Language) 

 
0 of 10 

 

 
0 of 10 

 

 
10 of 10 

 

4. Socio-economic 

Disadvantage 

 
6 of 6 

 

 
0 of 6 

 

 
0 of 6 

 

5. Consultation and 

Engagement 
Undertaken 

Due to be 
Undertaken 

Not Required 

1 of 1 0 of 1 
 

0 of 1 
 

6. Data and Evidence to 

inform the proposal 

Yes No 

 
1 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

7. Biodiversity and the 

resilience of Ecosystems 
Maintained Enhanced Reduced 

Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
1 of 1 

 

Summary 

The main 
positive impacts 
are: 

The documents in this report ensure that we are working towards our 
well-being objectives in the work that we are delivering.  Also 
demonstrating that in doing this work we are continually thinking 
about the long term, preventing further problems from arising, 
integrating with other strategies and plans, and external duties placed 
upon us, whilst collaborating and involving people and communities 
who have an interest. 
 
The plan includes the cross-cutting theme of tackling poverty and this 
has a positive impact on those who are experiencing socio-economic 
disadvantage, which will assist in delivering better outcomes for 
people. 
 

Page 8



Our RTI Plan integrates with the plan, helping us respond to the 
coronavirus pandemic, transition to recovery, together with our 
transformation to improvement. 
 
The plan provides us with a focus to sustainably deliver our services 
to meet the needs of our residents and support the wider regional 
plan.  The plan enables us to continue to build connections between 
people and empower communities in improving well-being. 
 
This is being built upon by the work we are doing in revising our 
corporate well-being plan (engagement and consultation).   
 

The main 
negative impacts 
are: 

No negative impacts have been identified. 
 
 

 
 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND RESOURCES 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 - Quarter 2 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report details the projected revenue outturn for 2022/23 as at 30th September 

2022, that is the 2nd Quarter, and was considered at Budget Board on 26th October 
2022. 

 
1.2 The report advises Cabinet of the projected outturn position for the 2022/23 financial 

year whilst focusing on projected major budget variances. 
 
1.3 A net revenue deficit of £2,471,000 is projected for the financial year.  The most 

significant variances are projected deficits of £884,000 for the Social Services 
Directorate, £893,000 for the Education Directorate, and £368,000 against the 
Economy and Public Protection Directorate.  A surplus of £500,000 is projected for 
the Corporate Vacancy Factor budget.  

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The Revenue Budget Monitoring report for the 2022/23 financial year based on 2nd 

Quarter projections be accepted. 
 
2.2 Budget Virements outlined in Appendix 2 be approved. 
 
2.3 Managers to urgently address projected budget deficits within their respective 

service areas, identifying all possible remedial measures to offset projected deficits, 
be approved. 

 

Date Written 26th October 2022 

Report Author Steve Jones / Ian Kent / Adam Price 

Service Area Finance 

Committee Division Strategic 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 9th November 2022 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Regular planned budget monitoring is crucial in ensuring effective financial 

stewardship and accountability and is governed by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s recommended best working practices. 

 
3.2 It is considered critical that Budget Monitoring arrangements are continually 

reviewed and enhanced to ensure continued effectiveness with robust challenge 
provided by both the Budget Board and the Change and Wellbeing Programme 
Board. 

 
3.3 This report details the net revenue expenditure position for the period 1st April 2022 

to 30th September 2022 (2nd Quarter) and revenue outturn projections for the 
2022/23 financial year and was considered at Budget Board of 26th October 2022. 

 

4.0 FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 2022/23 
 
4.1 Detailed in Appendix 1 is the summary Revenue Budget Monitoring statement as at 

30th September 2022, with a net revenue deficit of £2,471,000 projected for the 
2022/23 financial year. 

 
4.2 Detailed in Appendix 2 are requested Budget virements resulting from budget re-

alignment, required investment and departmental re-configuration. 
 
4.3 Major variances satisfying the following criteria are disclosed in Appendix 3:   
 

 Any under / overspend of at least £50,000 

 Any under / overspend that is 10% or more of the budget and at least £20,000 in 
value 

 Any other under / overspend considered significant at the discretion of the Chief 
Finance Officer 

 
The most significant major variances are discussed in more detail below. 

 

5.0 MAJOR VARIANCES 
 

Social Services 
 
5.1 The Social Services Directorate is projected to overspend by £884,000.   

 
5.2 A deficit of £93,000 is projected against Vale, Valleys and Cardiff (VVC) Regional 

Adoption Group due to adoptive placements being required to be purchased outside 
of the Regional Adoption Group. 

 
5.3 A deficit of £91,000 is projected for the Homes for the Elderly mainly due to high 

levels of staff sickness and vacant posts.  This is leading to a heavy reliance on 
agency staff and other staff being paid overtime at double time to cover the care 
hours. 

 

Page 12



 
5.4 A surplus of £207,000 is projected for the Supported Placements budget.  The 

budget assumed 30 placements with an average annual cost of £59,210 - current 
position reflects 24 ongoing placements to the end of the year with an average 
annual cost £56,149 (there have been 30 people supported throughout the year) with 
lower costs than previous placements. 

 
5.5 A surplus of £153,000 is projected for Direct Payments.  The budget assumed 116 

packages of care with an average annual cost £20,840 - current position reflects 113 
ongoing packages with an average annual cost £21,944 (-£37,000) to the end of the 
financial year (there have been 122 people supported throughout the year).  Along 
with higher than anticipated income and recovery of balances (-£73,000) and lower 
than anticipated Service Delivery costs (-£9,000). 

 
5.6 A budget surplus of £86,000 is reported for the Independent Residential 

Establishments (IRE’s) budget.  The budget assumed 191 placements with an 
average annual cost of £33,550 - current position reflects 197 ongoing placements to 
the end of the financial year with an overall average annual cost of £32,720 (there 
have been 225 adults supported through the year). 

 
5.7 A budget deficit of £643,000 is reported for CLA Residential Placement Services.  

The budget assumed 12 residential placements with an average annual cost of 
£215,085 - current position reflects 12 ongoing placements with an average annual 
cost of £277,902 to the end of the financial year (there have been 15 children 
supported throughout the year).  The service has experienced significant increases 
to the level of care required and currently has one secure placement at £16,513 per 
week.  Earmarked reserves are also supporting this budget pressure and £180,000 
will be drawn down and is included in the outturn position. 
 

5.8 A budget deficit of £240,000 is reported for CLA Fostering - Independent Fostering 
Agencies (IFA’s).  The budget assumed 43 Independent Fostering Placements with 
an average annual cost £43,910 - current position reflects 42 placements ongoing to 
the end of financial year with an overall average annual cost £45,680 (there have 
been 46 children supported throughout the year). 

 
5.9 A budget deficit of £487,000 is reported for Leaving Care Support Services.  This is 

due to higher than anticipated spend within Stepdown provision and the need for 
increased level of support to one young person.  Along with one new 
unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Child. 

 
5.10 A budget deficit of £108,000 is reported against the Social Service Grant.  Welsh 

Government reduced the grant after the Medium Term Financial Plan was set. 
 
Education 

 
5.11 The Education Directorate is projected to overspend by £893,000. 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



5.12 The Schools Mainstream transport budget has been vired to education from 
Economy and Public Protection as at month 6.  A deficit of £576,000 is projected for 
the Transport budget.  Home to school transport contract prices were increased by 
10% in March 2022 and a further 10% in July 2022, therefore a de facto 21% 
increase on all contracts.  £224,000 of this would be attributable to the price 
increases above, and £329,000 is a result of further price increases from a full tender 
exercise undertaken during the summer holiday period. 

 
5.13 A deficit of £234,000 is projected for the School Transport budget.  Contract prices 

were increased by 10% in March 2022 and a further 10% in July 2022, therefore a 
de facto 21% increase on all contracts.  A full tender exercise of all contracts was 
undertaken during the school summer holidays and this has also resulted in an 
increased cost to contracts. 
 

5.14 A deficit of £112,000 is projected for Special Recoupment this is due to three 
additional placements agreed from September 2022 along with associated transport 
costs.  

 
Economy and Public Protection 

 
5.15 The Economy and Public Protection Directorate is projected to overspend by 

£368,000. 
 

5.16 A deficit of £130,000 is projected for Housing Services.  This is due to additional 
temporary accommodation required over what had been budgeted. 

 
5.17 A deficit of £84,000 is projected for the Office Accommodation budget.  Manned 

security provision in Unit 5 has been increased from 25 hrs per week to 105 hrs per 
week.  Cost is projected to be £78,000 per annum compared to the budget of 
£21,000.  This is required due to ongoing works at Unit 5 and relocation of the 
Highways Depot.  The property team are looking at upgrading the CCTV system, in 
order to reduce the requirement for manned security.  The Llysfaen Fach building is 
currently vacant and being managed by the Estates team.  24hr manned security 
has been put in place which is expected to be required until mid-September 2022 at 
a cost of £56,000, at which point a remote security system can be installed. 
 
Neighbourhood Services 

 
5.18 A deficit of £166,000 is projected against Grounds Maintenance.  This relates mainly 

due to works to clear trees affected with Ash Dieback disease costing £92,000 more 
than expected.  The original estimated budget was based on assumptions before 
actual surveys had been undertaken. 
 
Governance and Resources 

 
5.19 Parking Services is projected to underspend by £79,000 this is due to higher income 

from Parking Control Notices than originally anticipated. 
 
 
 

Page 14



Corporate  
 
5.20 A surplus of £201,000 is projected for the Council Tax Benefit Payments budget.  

The number of claimants is 138 fewer than estimated. 
 

5.21 The authority has fixed £30 million of long term PWLB due to rising interest rates, the 
additional long term borrowing costs for the 2022/23 financial year have been offset 
by a reduction in short term interest costs due to the Authority being in receipt of 
£22m interest free loans.  The majority of the interest loans have not yet been 
applied to capital expenditure and so the Authority has benefited by not having to 
borrow loans at a higher rate from the market.  As capital expenditure is incurred 
against these loans, this benefit will reduce and the Authority will have to borrow at 
higher interest rates going into the next financial year.  The Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP) charge for the 2022/23 financial year is lower than budgeted due to 
slippage in the capital programme.   

 
Contributions / Recharges 

 
5.22 On 19th July 2022, UK Government announced that Teachers in England would 

receive a pay award of 5%.  The Council’s current budgets are based on a 4% pay 
award from September 2022.  Assuming Welsh Government also agree to a 5% pay 
award the additional cost to the Authority is circa £175,000.  This additional cost will 
be funded from the pay award earmarked reserve. 

 
5.23 Employers have offered a pay award of £1,925 on all scale points from 1st April 

2022.  The council’s budgets are currently based on a flat 4% on all scale points.  
Assuming this pay award is agreed the additional cost to the Authority would be circa 
£1.1 million.  Part of this additional cost will be funded from the pay award 
earmarked reserve of £466,000. 

 
5.24 The Chancellor of the Exchequer announced on 23rd September 2022 a reversal of 

the National Insurance increase of 1.25% from the 6th November 2022.  This reversal 
will save the Authority approximately £205,000 during 2022/23. 

 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 A net deficit budget outturn of £2,471,000 is projected for 2022/23 based on the 

financial position as at 30th September 2022. 
 
6.2 Remedial measures to partly address the projected budget deficit will be 

implemented, including robust scrutiny of non-salary expenditure and enhanced 
vacant post management.  It is inevitable however that non-General Reserves will 
need to be utilised to meet the residual budget deficit.  

 

Page 15



7.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 
7.1 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives  

4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working? 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 

 

 
0 of 10 

 

 
10 of 10 

 

4. Socio-economic Disadvantage  
0 of 6 

 

 
0 of 6 

 

 
6 of 6 

 

5. Consultation and Engagement 
Undertaken 

Due to be 
Undertaken 

Not Required 

0 of 1 0 of 1 
 

1 of 1 
 

6. Data and Evidence to inform the 
proposal 

Yes No 

 
1 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

7. Biodiversity and the resilience of 
Ecosystems 

Maintained Enhanced Reduced 
Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
1 of 1 

 

Summary 

The main positive 
impacts are: 

The main positive impacts are that the report contributes to the financial 
sustainability of the Council and therefore enables the continued delivery 
of essential Council services. 
 

The main negative 
impacts are: 

There remain a number of departmental financial pressures requiring 
close monitoring.   
 
 

 
 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND RESOURCES 
 

Page 16



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
Revenue Budget 
Monitoring Working 
Papers 
 

 
April 2022 to September 

2022 

 
Accountancy Department 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report

Page 17



 
 

General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 (As at 30 September 2022)

Corporate Summary

30-Jun-22 Vacant 30-Sep-22  

Budget Post Other Budget Outturn

Summary 2022/23 Virements Virements 2022/23 Month 6

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Council Services

Social Services Directorate 40,198 -314 0 39,884 18,778 40,768 884 2.22

Education Directorate 53,592 -21 1,609 55,180 46,181 56,073 893 1.62

Economy and Public Protection Directorate 10,371 -28 -1,711 8,632 6,255 9,000 368 4.26

Neighbourhood Services Directorate 12,130 -129 0 12,001 5,305 11,989 -12 -0.10

Governance and Resources Directorate 8,695 -41 102 8,756 4,330 8,685 -71 -0.81

Total 124,986 -533 0 124,453 80,849 126,515 2,062 1.66

Corporate Costs

Corporate Management - Executive 1,115 -30 0 1,085 492 1,088 3 0.28

Corporate Authority 19,049 0 0 19,049 5,600 18,885 -164 -0.86

Total 20,164 -30 0 20,134 6,092 19,973 -161 -0.80

Contributions / Recharges

Non General Fund Allocations -835 0 0 -835 0 -835 0 0.00

Discretionary Non Domestic Rate Relief 94 0 0 94 0 94 0 0.00

Collection Fund Surplus -850 0 0 -850 0 -850 0 0.00

Corporate Vacancy Factor -573 563 0 -10 0 -510 -500 100.00

Redundancy & EPP /slippage 791 0 0 791 0 791 0 0.00

Contribution from Budget Reserve -701 0 0 -701 0 -701 0 0.00

Pay Award Offer 0 0 0 0 1,275 1,275 1,275 100.00

Employer NI Saving 0 0 0 0 -205 -205 -205 100.00

Total -2,074 563 0 -1,511 1,070 -941 570 -37.72

COVID19 CODES

Education (FSM) 0 0 0 0 217 0 0 0.00

Corporate 0 0 0 0 561 0 0 0.00

Total 0 0 0 0 778 0 0 0.00

Net Expenditure 143,076 0 0 143,076 88,789 145,547 2,471 1.73

Year End 

Projection Variance

Appendix 1

 

P
age 18



General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 (As at 30 September 2022)

Proposed Budget Virements Appendix 2

Budget

Amount 

£'000 Budget

Amount 

£'000

Transport -1609 Education Mainstream Transport 1609 Responsibility for the mainstream school transport budget has 

moved to Education.

Registrars -102 Corporate Comms 102 Responsibility for Registrars now under Corporate Comms

Licensing -29

Trading Standards -28

Community Safety -19

Transport -19

Trading Standards -1 CCTV 1
Budget for fleet vehicle - no longer with Trading Standards but 

CCTV have new CCTV van

Transport -12 Licensing 12 Transfer of budget for Licensing Assistant post

Virement From Virement To

Reason for Virement

Separately identifying salary costs of Head of Public Protection.Head Of Public Protection 95

 

P
age 19



General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 (As at 30 September 2022) Appendix 3

Major Variances

Ref. Budget Head Variance Variance Explanation

£'000 %

1 Integrated Community Equipment 

Store (ICES)

-45 -25.57 Current service demand lower from MTFP budget setting estimates.  Extension to regional 

Pandemic support reducing current cost levels.

No action

2 Vale, Valleys & Cardiff (VVC) 

Regional Adoption Group

93 41.52 Adoptive placement(s) required to be purchased outside of the Regional Adoption Group No action

3 Deprivation of Liberty (DOLs) 

Services

-25 -38.46 Additional funding received to support the ongoing operation of the Mental Capacity Act 

(MCA) and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DOLs) through activities such as increased 

assessments to support timeliness of applications and training.

No action

4 Initial Response Services -53 -6.98 Regional Integrated Fund Grant 22/23 funding maximised. No action

5 MTCBC Homes for the Elderly 91 4.41 TGN - projected underspend £1k.  There is projected overspend against salaries/direct 

replacement costs but this is being offset by small underspends across other budget head 

and offset by additional income (£40k) from 2 clients showing an increase to self funder 

rates.

TBN - projected overspend of £90k. This is made up of an overspend in salaries/agency of 

£112k.  The home currently have a number of vacant posts and staff on sick.  There is 

currently a heavy reliance on agency who, as a result, are being paid basic hours and 

overtime and double/treble time but work is being undertaken to try and reduce the use of 

agency.  The projection is based on costs that have been incurred April - September.  

Hoping that as posts are filled, agency costs will come down (£118k projected at month 

4/5).  Small underspend across other budget heads of £3k offsetting the overspend against 

salaries.  Some additional income from a new client who is showing as self funder.

Continue to monitor.

6 MTCBC Group Home (Llysfaen 

Fach)

-74 -8.50 Projected underspend largely from salaries/direct replacement.  Also projected no spend 

against most of the premises related costs since these are being met by TGN. 

Continue to monitor.  Will review 

salary budgets as part of the MTFP 

exercise and remove premises 

related budget.

Action Taken to address

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 20



General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 (As at 30 September 2022) Appendix 3

Major Variances

Ref. Budget Head Variance Variance Explanation

£'000 %

7 Transport - Day services 51 18.21 Corporate decision to increase contract rates by 10% from June 2022 in light of increasing 

fuel costs.  These have been projected from June 2022 to September 2022.  The contract 

has recently been re-tendered with new rates to take effect from 1st October.  This equates 

to an additional £8k per month and has been projected from October to March.

Continue to monitor and reflect new 

contract price in MTFP.

8 Supported Placements -207 -5.13 Supported Living (-£16k) lower than anticipated service costs  - Supported Placements (-

£164k) - MTFP budget assumption is 30 placements with an average annual cost of 

£59,210 - current position reflects 24 ongoing placements to the end of the year with an 

average annual cost £56,149 (there have been 30 people supported throughout the year) 

with lower costs than previous placements. Young Adult Transition Provision (-£14k) 

services ended

Continue to monitor

9 Direct Payments -153 -6.03 MTFP budget assumed 116 packages of care with an average annual cost £20,840 - 

current position reflects 113 ongoing packages with an average annual cost £21,944 (-

£37k) to the end of the financial year (there have been 122 people supported throughout 

the year). Along with higher than anticipated income and recovery of balances (-£73k) and 

lower than anticipated Service Delivery costs (-£9k)

Continue to monitor

10 Independent Commissioned Day 

Services

-90 -29.22 Current service demand continue to be lower from MTFP budget setting estimates.  

Ongoing service reductions and slow transition out of Pandemic with permanent moves to 

alternative provisions.

Continue to monitor

11 Independent Residential 

Establishments (IRE's)

-86 -1.28 MTFP budget assumed 191 placements with an average annual cost £33,550 - current 

position reflects 197 ongoing placements to the end of the financial year with an overall 

average annual cost £32,720  (there have been 225 adults supported through the year). 

Continue to monitor

12 CLA Residential Placement 

Services

643 25.25 MTFP budget assumed 12 residential placements with an average annual cost £215,085 - 

current position reflects 12 ongoing placements with an average annual cost £277,902 to 

the end of the financial year (there have been 15 children supported throughout the year).  

The service has experienced significant increases to the level of care required and 

currently has 1 secure placement at £16,513per week. Earmarked reserves are also 

supported this budget pressure and £180k will be drawn down and is included in the outturn 

position

Continue to monitor

Action Taken to address

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 21



General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 (As at 30 September 2022) Appendix 3

Major Variances

Ref. Budget Head Variance Variance Explanation

£'000 %

13 CLA Fostering - Independent 

Fostering Agencies (IFA's)

240 12.59 MTFP budget assumed 43 Independent Fostering Placements with an average annual cost 

£43,910 - current position reflects 46 placements ongoing to the end of financial year with 

an overall average annual cost £45,960 (there have been 56 children supported throughout 

the year) (£227k) along with a further (£13k) from higher than anticipated costs for the 

regional 4C's service.

Continue to monitor

14 CLA Fostering - In House, 

Kinship & Emergency/Respite 

Fostering

-63 -4.46 In House - MTFP budget assumed 55 placements - current position reflects 41 ongoing 

placements to the end of the financial year -£44k (there have been 68 children supported 

throughout the year). Kinship - MTFP budget assumed 55 placements - current position 

reflects 35 placements ongoing to the end of the financial year -£57k (there have been 47 

children supported throughout the year). Support Services -£30k lower than anticipated 

support costs. Respite Services £8k higher than anticipated spend and higher than 

anticipated spend within Therapeutic support £60k

Continue to monitor

15 Children Looked After (Court, 

Legal & Professional) Services

30 12.30 Currently experiencing higher than anticipated costs in relation to Children Looked After 

professional services - Court & Legal Services -£6k; DNA & Drug testing £22k;   

Professional Services (Medical expert witness services) £14k; Translation Services and 

other costs £0k

Continue to monitor

16 Leaving Care Support Services 487 86.50 Higher than anticipated spend within Stepdown provision and the need for increased level 

of support to 1 young person along with 1 new Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Child

Continue to monitor

17 Independent Safeguarding 

Services

42 32.56 Historically Safeguarding Services have used contracted Independent Review Officers 

(IRO's) to conduct CLA and CP review.   For quality and sustainability of the service, in 

2021/22 a decision was made to appoint a permanent IRO to the service.  The IRO 

commenced in April 2022 and did not start doing CLA and CP reviews straight away with 

reviews still being conducted by contracted IRO's whilst at the same time paying the salary 

of the permanent IRO.  Work has been done to identify the number of reviews that need to 

be undertaken by the IRO to generate savings.  Whilst savings are being seen in the CP 

budget, this is not the case with the CLA budget.  The Safeguarding Manager is going to 

review current processes to try and reduce costs hitting the CLA budget.

Continue to monitor.

Action Taken to address

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 22



General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 (As at 30 September 2022) Appendix 3

Major Variances

Ref. Budget Head Variance Variance Explanation

£'000 %

18 Social Services Grant 108 -10.07 Welsh Government grant reduced after Medium Term Financial Plan was set Adjust MTFP  23/24 onwards

19 Special Recoupment 112 15.64 3 Additional placement agreedfrom Sepetmber with associated transport costs.  Continue to monitor.

20 School Transport - Mainstream 

Transport

576 35.80 Home to school transport contractors were granted an initial 10% increase on their contract 

prices as a result of increased fuel costs, and a further 10%  as a result of other Authority 

contract uplifts.

We are currently projecting additional home to school transport costs of £575K over 

budget.  £224K of this would be attributable to the two 10% increases granted because of 

operators' increased costs and some variations to existing contracts, and £329K of this is 

as a result of having to retender all of the contracts.  We have included an additional £22K 

as a result of a route being deemed unsafe due to the A465 roadworks (88days*£250). 

Monitor but referred to Commercial 

Manager for investigation on 

alternative service provision.

Consider asking Welsh Government 

for a re-imbursement of the 

additional costs incurred as a result 

of A465 roadworks.

21 School Transport - SEN 

Transport

234 20.58 Contract prices were in increased by 10% in March 2022 and a further 10% in July 2022 

due to increase fuel costs, therefore a de facto 21% increase on all contracts.  A full tender 

exercise was undertaken during the summer on all contacts, this resulted in further 

increases in costs.

Continue to monitor.

22 Bus Station 37 19.37 Electricity costs higher than anticipated due to EV charger (£10k), Security costs higher 

than anticipated (£13k) due to increased rate and extra bank holidays where additional 

cover is required for staff, Departure charges reduced (£12k) because of reduced usage.

Continue to monitor and adjust 

where necessary in MTFP going 

forward

Action Taken to address

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 23



General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 (As at 30 September 2022) Appendix 3

Major Variances

Ref. Budget Head Variance Variance Explanation

£'000 %

23 Housing Services (RSL's Advice 

& Strategy)

130 8.73 Budget based on additional pre-booked accommodation £2,045K, Security costs of £353K 

plus core costs of £204K = £2,602K less hardship income of £1,856K = £746K

Temporary accommodation costs over by £131K :

We have had to book additional accommodation that we anticipate will cost £275K plus we 

project additional  security costs of £75K (mainly due to a £67K contribution to Blaenau 

Gwent CBC towards the security costs of a hotel we use within their boundaries).

These costs are offset by projected housing benefit income of £206K and  £12K from a 

lower than budgeted room rate on two of the properties we use.

Housing have secured some 

alternative accommodation but that 

will not be ready until September 

2023.  Housing continue to source 

alternative accommodation but in the 

interim we will continue to monitor 

costs

24 Glynmil Gipsy Site 41 67.21 Repairs £7K over - needed to fix street lighting. NDR charges incurred for re-opened 

Community Centre £3K, Reduction in expected income £10K - not all site electricity 

charges are being recovered, Reduction in rental income - 4 vacant plots £13K.  Site 

warden opted into pension scheme £4K. Unbudgeted subscription costs £3K for smart 

meters

Continue to monitor

25 Transport -48 -15.14 Unbudgeted concessionary fares admin grant of £48K.  Administration of the 

concessionary fares scheme has yet to be removed from the Authority so we will continue 

to get the admin grant of £48K.

No action

26 Office Accommodation 84 9.78 Manned security provision in Unit 5 has been increased from 25 hrs per week to 105 hrs 

per week. Cost is projected to be £78,000 pa compared to budget of £21,000. This is 

required due to ongoing works at Unit 5 and relocation of the Highways Depot. The property 

team are looking at upgrading the CCTV system, in order to reduce the requirement for 

manned security.                                                                                                                                 

There will be a potential saving of around £24k on Electricity in the Civic due to data centre 

changes.

The Llysfaen Fach building is currently vacant and being managed by the Estates team. 

24hr manned security was in place from April until mid September at a cost of £56,000. 

The intention is to install a remote security system. 

The property team are planning to 

upgrade CCTV at Unit 5 to reduce 

the manned security requirement.

Action Taken to address

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 24



General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 (As at 30 September 2022) Appendix 3

Major Variances

Ref. Budget Head Variance Variance Explanation

£'000 %

27 St Tydfil's Shopping Centre 95 -14.62 2 commercial tenancies are ending in year, and 2 commercial tenants have negotiated 

lower rents. This equates to approx. £41,000 lost rental income for 22/23, and a further 

£20k in contributions to the service charge account.

Repair and maintenance costs in relation to void properties is £48k at month 6.

Continue to monitor.

28 Grounds Maintenance 166 9.30 Ash Dieback tender  - works more than budgeted £92K. The original estimated budget was 

based on assumptions before actual surveys had been undertaken.  Remaining overspend - 

Various reasons: Overtime £27K.  Petrol projected £19K over due to price increases.  

Repair of Cyfarthfa Gates - not expecting to recoup 100% of costs from insurance so 

looking at £11K shortfall.  Tipping charges £7K over.  Legal Fees £8K (no budget but 

Invasive species legal costs)

Continue to monitor

29 Waste Disposal 50 5.40 The Energy from Waste contract rate increased by more than estimated. Budget was 

based on 5% inflation, actual inflation was 8%. The additional cost of this is approx. 

£24,000 in 22/23.

Projected waste sent for treatment is expected to be 11,000 tonnes, compared to budget 

of 10,794 tonnes. The additional cost of this is approx. £26,000.

The MTFP will be updated to reflect 

the actual contract rate. Inflation 

assumptions for future years will 

have to be reviewed.

30 Recycling Collection (inc SWMG) -324 -30.37 Recycling income is projected to be £774,000 for the year compared to budget of 

£422,000. Market prices for materials (in particular plastic) have increased significantly this 

year, however, these prices are volatile and this projection is likely to change throughout the 

year.

Also included is a £40,000 contribution to the capital programme to fund the replacement of 

the porta cabin at Aberfan HWRC Site.

Continue to monitor.

31 ICT Computers 69 4.18 Additional requirements in Cyber budget which had not been included within the budget Continue to monitor and adjust 

where necessary in MTFP going 

forward

Action Taken to address

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 25



General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 (As at 30 September 2022) Appendix 3

Major Variances

Ref. Budget Head Variance Variance Explanation

£'000 %

32 Benefits -57 -9.63 Administration Grant received was £46k more than anticipated. Employee reduction in 

hours and pension opt-out £7k

Adjust the MTFP where necessary

33 Parking Services -79 47.02 Projection for income from PCN's higher than originally anticipated.  4,482 PCN's issued for 

the period to the19th Oct 2022 in comparison to the 3,330 for the whole of 2021/22.  Of 

which 2,965 have been issued via the enforcement car this year whereas only 146 were 

from the car in the last financial year.

Continue to monitor and adjust 

where necessary in MTFP going 

forward

34 Corporate Communication Team 26 10.20 JE regrade for Comms Officer to GR8, loss of income due to Digital Comms Officer post 

not yet being filled and JE regrade for Comms manager to HOS.

Continue to monitor and adjust 

where necessary in MTFP going 

forward

35 Council Tax Benefit Payments -201 -2.93 Lower number of claims (138) than anticipated at a marginally lower (£11.75) average cost 

per claim.

Coninue to monitor.

36 Bank Charges 36 33.96 A delay in changing debit and credit card payment provider (i.e. merchant bank) has 

resulted in projected costs for the year of £112,000 compared to a budget of £78,000

The council is engaging with a new 

provider which is expected to bring 

costs down during the year.

Action Taken to address

 

P
age 26



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

TEMPORARY CHANGE TO COUNCIL’S MILEAGE 
RATE 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval to adopt the Joint Protocol for 

mileage rates in Local Authorities in Wales as a temporary arrangement. 
 
1.2 The mileage rates would change from the HMRC rate of 45ppm to 50ppm with effect 

from 1st November 2022 and be reviewed in March 2023. 
 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) that 
 
2.1 The changes to the mileage rate from the Joint Protocol be approved. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The mileage rate currently paid by the Council is the HMRC rate of 45 pence per 

mile. 
 

3.2 Both employers and trades unions recognise the impact of the current cost of living 
crisis on the workforce and the immediate pressures presented because of 
unprecedented increases in fuel costs. 

 
3.3 At a national level, Leaders at the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) 

Executive Board on 17 July 2022, requested the development of a joint protocol, for 
local authorities to consider for adoption, to temporarily increase mileage 

Date Written 17th October 2022 ** 

Report Author Hannah Brown 

Service Area HR & OD 

Committee Division Strategic 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 9th November 2022 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



reimbursements rates in the short term to address current market volatility in fuel 
rates. 
 

3.4 Representations were made directly by employees and through trade union 
representatives about the prevailing cost of fuel and the mileage rate paid to 
employees.  It was considered that there was a risk in some service areas that rising 
costs for work related mileage essential to service delivery would have a negative 
impact on employees and potential recruitment and retention. 
 

3.5 Consideration therefore has been given to adopt the protocol as a temporary 
measure to provide support to staff using their vehicles as part of their role. 

 
 

4.0 CURRENT SITUATION/PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 The joint protocol on mileage rates, attached at Appendix 1, has been approved by 

Group Leaders on behalf of the WLGA Executive Board, and shared with the Joint 
Council for Wales (JCW) Executive, and trade unions have formally agreed the 
proposal and requested its implementation at the earliest opportunity. 
 

4.2 The national protocol is effective from 26 September 2022.   
 

4.3 The protocol is clear that it is not intended to replace current local arrangements but 
offers, through mutual employers’ and trade unions’ agreement, a temporary 
arrangement that is triggered by an increase in fuel rates that exceed an agreed 
threshold, the arrangement is similarly removed when fuel rates reduce below that 
same threshold.  
 

4.4 This protocol will temporarily amend the mileage expenses rate with effect from 1st 
November 2022. 
 

4.5 All mileage claims claimed from 1st November 2022 will include the new rate. 
 

 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The full annual cost of implementing this new rate, based on the 2021/2022 levels of 

work mileage is estimated at £14,000 per annum with the estimated cost for the 
period 1st November 2022 to 31st March 2023 being £5,800. This can currently be 
funded from within existing mileage budgets as a result of lower than usual mileage 
at the current time. Mileage rates are reduced at present time due to 
meetings/training/conferences now being held virtually instead of in-person.  Front 
line service delivery e.g. social care workers are still required to claim mileage to 
carry out their roles.  The increase in rates should help cover the increase in fuel 
expenditure. 

 
 
 
 

Page 28



6.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives
  

2 of 4 0 of 4 2 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development Principles 
- How have you considered the five 
ways of working? 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 

 

 
0 of 10 

 

 
10 of 10 

 

4. Socio-economic Disadvantage  
2 of 6 

 

 
0 of 6 

 

 
4 of 6 

 

5. Consultation and Engagement 
Undertaken 

Due to be 
Undertaken 

Not Required 

1 of 1 0 of 1 
 

0 of 1 
 

6. Data and Evidence to inform the 
proposal 

Yes No 

 
1 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

7. Biodiversity and the resilience of 
Ecosystems 

Maintained Enhanced Reduced 
Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
1 of 1 

 

Summary 

The main positive 
impacts are: 

The mileage rates would change from the HMRC rate of 45ppm to 50ppm 
with effect from 1st November 2022 and be reviewed in March 2023 to 
support staff with the cost of living crisis. 

The main negative 
impacts are: 

There are no negative impacts on this proposal. 
 

 
 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

& RESOURCES 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 
 

Page 30



APPROVED 
02 September 2022 
Version 3 
 

Joint Protocol 

Mileage Rates in Local Authorities in Wales 

 

This is a joint protocol between Leaders of local authorities in Wales, facilitated 
through the WLGA Executive Board and the trades unions of the Joint Council for 
Wales, to introduce a measure that provides for a temporary increase in mileage 
reimbursements costs in the short term to address current market volatility in fuel 
rates. 

The protocol is intended to cover staff directly employed by local authorities in 
accordance with local policies and is a temporary arrangement through to 31 March 
2023 or until there is an increase in the HMRC determined AMAP rate, whichever is 
the sooner. This protocol will be automatically superseded by any increase in the 
HMRC AMAP rate.  

 

Introduction  

Both employers and trades unions recognise the impact of the current cost of living 
crisis on the workforce and the immediate pressures presented as a consequence of 
unprecedented increases in fuel costs. 

The agreed rate of reimbursement for mileage rates for local government employees 
is determined locally by each local authority and the majority of local authorities in 
Wales adopt the HMRC AMAP rates.  

The HMRC AMAP rate provides approved rates for the reimbursement of mileage 
without incurring tax or national insurance. However, the rate has remained static 
since 2011/12 and an argument has been presented to the Joint Council for Wales 
that this has not kept pace with current fuel costs. 

This protocol does not replace current local arrangements but offers, through mutual 
agreement between local government employers and trades unions in Wales, a 
temporary arrangement that is triggered by an increase in fuel rates that exceed an 
agreed threshold, the arrangement is similarly removed when fuel rates reduce 
below that same threshold.  

The arrangement, once triggered and until removed, will enable those eligible 
through existing local authority policies to claim an additional agreed sum per mile up 
to an agreed maximum, to mitigate against the impact of sustained high fuel costs. 
The additional payment will be subject to tax and national insurance. 

 

  

Page 31



APPROVED 
02 September 2022 
Version 3 
 
The protocol 

The protocol will provide: 

1. The agreed sum for reimbursement 
2. The threshold at which an increase would come into force  
3. An independent reference point to guide decision making 
4. The point at which the threshold would need to be breached to trigger an 

increase or the point at which it would be removed 
5. A summary of the threshold, reference point and rate for reimbursement  

 

The agreed sum for reimbursement 

The ability to claim an additional payment of 5 pence per mile where tax and NI are 
paid and 3 pence per mile where tax and NI are not paid, with reimbursement up to a 
maximum of 50 pence per mile, when an agreed threshold is breached. The ability to 
claim the additional payment will be withdrawn when the HMRC advisory fuel rate 
assessment returns below this threshold.  

 

Threshold 

The agreed threshold is £1.50 per litre or 15.2 pence per mile. 

£1.50 per litre or 15.2 pence per mile as determined by the HMRC Advisory Fuel 
Rate Assessment, is the point at which the ability to claim the additional payment 
would be triggered and the point below which it would be removed.  

 

Reference point 

The HMRC Advisory Fuel Rates assessment Advisory fuel rates - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk) will be used as the reference point.  

The HMRC Advisory Fuel rates are different from the AMAP published rates, they 
are the advisory fuel rates for company car users and are calculated using the 
prevailing price of fuel on a quarterly basis.  

The HMRC Advisory fuel rates are being used in this context as an objective 
measure to inform the agreed sum for reimbursement, the threshold and trigger 
points.  

 

  

Page 32



APPROVED 
02 September 2022 
Version 3 
 
Trigger points 

The baseline has been set using the rate of reimbursement applied between 1 June 
2021 and 31 August 2021 which was 13 pence per mile for a 1401 – 2000 cc vehicle 
running at 44.9 mpg. This equates to £5.84 per gallon or £1.28 per litre. 

A tolerance level above the baseline of circa 15% provides for an upper level of 
£6.80 per gallon or £1.50 per litre and this is the point at which the trigger would 
come in and the point at which it would be removed.  

That broadly equates to a 2 pence per mile increase above the AMAP rate. The 
ability to claim an additional 5 pence per mile at this point would, after 20% tax and 
NI, provide circa 3.5 pence and this would cover any further increases in the price of 
fuel as published under the HMRC Advisory Fuel Rates assessment of up to 17.9 
pence per mile. 

Should HMRC Advisory Fuel Rates Assessment reach or exceed a reimbursement 
of 18 pence per mile then a further review will be undertaken. 

 

Summary 

Price of fuel 
pence per 
litre 

pence per 
mile (ppm) 

Reference 
point –  

HMRC 
Advisory Fuel 
Rate (ppm) – 
including date 
of publication 

Agreed sum for 
reimbursement 

Net 
increase 

1.30 
(baseline) 

13.1 13 (06/21 Up to 45 ppm AMAP rate 
no tax or NI 

At or above 
1.50 

(threshold) 

15.2 15 (03/22)  

17 (06/22) 

Up to 50 ppm Circa 3.5 
ppm after 
tax and NI 

  18 Trigger for a 
review 

To be 
determined 

 

Application 

The increase will apply for all fuel types including electric, hybrid and diesel cars. 

 

  

Page 33



APPROVED 
02 September 2022 
Version 3 
 
Implementation 

Implementation will require local authorities to adopt the protocol and apply its 
provisions as a temporary arrangement within local policies on mileage rates.  

 

Term  

This interim protocol will take effect from 26 September 2022 and will expire on 31 
March 2023. 

It is subject to review and can be amended by joint agreement. This includes the 
opportunity to reconsider the threshold as a part of any review. 

 

Signed: 

 

 

 

 

 

On behalf of the WLGA Executive Board 
  
Cllr Anthony Hunt  
 
(Workforce Spokesperson and Chair, Joint 
Council for Wales) 
 

On behalf of the NJC Trades Unions  
 
Darron Dupre  
 
(Trade Union Side Joint Secretary, Joint 
Council for Wales)  
 

 

Date:  23 September 2022 

Page 34



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Highway Adoptions  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The attached Table in Appendix 1 outlines highways that have been constructed as 

part of a housing development in the County Borough. The table also includes the 
final inspection dates of each development. 

 
1.2 The highways have been inspected by the Highways Officer and have been 

constructed to the standards that enable the Council to adopt them as highways 
maintainable at public expense. 

 
1.3 In the event that Cabinet accept the recommendation in 2.1 below, notices will be 

displayed in the relevant locations declaring that the highways will be maintainable at 
public expense should no valid objections be received within one month of the date 
advised within the notice. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION that 

 
2.1 The adoption of the streets as detailed in the Table in Appendix 1, under the 

Highways Act 1980 Section 38 and 228, be approved. 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The attached Table outlines highways that have been constructed as part of a 

housing development within the County Borough. The final inspection dates are 
shown within the Table in Appendix 1. 

 

Date Written 4th October 2022 ** 

Report Author Martyn Tanner   

Service Area Engineering  

Committee Division Portfolio  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 9th November 2022 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



3.2 The highways have been inspected by the Highways Officer and have been 
constructed to the standards that enable the Council to adopt them as highways 
maintainable at public expense. 

 
3.3 In the event that Cabinet accept the recommendation in 2.1 above, notices will be 

displayed in the relevant locations declaring that the highways will be maintainable at 
public expense should no valid objections be received within one month of the date 
advised within the notice. 

 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Following the adoption of the streets in this report:- 
 

a) The Welsh Government will be informed of the change in County Borough highway 
lengths and the un-hypothecated funding system via future Standard Assessments 
(SSA) adjusted accordingly. 

b) On adoption, the highways will be immediately maintainable at public expense for 
which funding will need to be found from the highways revenue budget in future 
years and as such will require re-alignment of the MTFP to reflect this. 

c) Prior to receipt of future Welsh Government funding any remedial works will be 
funded from the current highways maintenance budget.   

 
4.2      Amendments to Welsh Government records submitted annually, relate to the  

changes in the County Borough highway lengths and will result in changes to the   
funding stream via the Standard Spending assessment procedure. Increased 
adopted highway lengths result in increased funding from Welsh Government.      

 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives  4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development Principles - How 
have you considered the five ways of 
working? 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh 
Language) 

 
3 of 10 

 

 
0 of 10 

 

 
7 of 10 

 

4. Socio-economic Disadvantage 0 of 6 
 

0 of 6 
 

6 of 6 
 

5. Consultation and Engagement 
Undertaken 

Due to be 
Undertaken 

Not Required 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 o 

6. Data and Evidence to inform the proposal Yes No 

  

Page 36



1 of 1 
 

0 of 1 
 

7. Biodiversity and the resilience of 
Ecosystems 

Maintained Enhanced Reduced 
Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
1 of 1 

 

Summary 

The main positive 
impacts are: 

 

 The Well Being objectives are that the proposal provides 
additional footway/highway networks for the benefit of the public 
of all ages that will assist in developing the environment and 
safer communities and supporting people.  

 The Sustainable Development Principles are that the proposal 
will give opportunity to encourage more activity that leads to 
better physical health, promoting healthier behaviours and 
increased levels of physical activity. More physical activity will 
result in lesser dependency in motorised transport.  

 The Protected Characteristics and Welsh Language - The 
proposal will incorporate the Welsh language in Public Notices. 

 Consultation and Engagement – public notice will be given of 
the proposal. 

 Data And Evidence – site inspections carried out. 

 The Socio-economic Disadvantage (Strategic Decisions) is not 
applicable. 

 Biodiversity and resilience of Ecosystems – neutral impact. 
 

The main negative 
impacts are: 

No negative impacts have been identified against the Well-Being 
Objectives, the Sustainable Development Principles, Protected 
Characteristics, Welsh Language and Biodiversity. 
 
 

 
 
 
JUDITH JONES  
DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES  
CABINET MEMBER FOR  

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 37



 
 

Appendix 1 – Highways Act 1980 (Sections 38 and 228) and Local Government Act 1972 Section 111 – 
 

Adoption of Streets Following Completion of Developments 
 
 

 
 
 

Road/Street 
Name 

 
 
 
Verge 

 
 
 
Area 
Sq.m 

 
Lengths 

 
 
 
H A 
Sectio
n 

 
 
No of 
S/L 
Cols. 

 
 
 
No of 
gullies 

 
 
 
Date of 
inspection 

 
Widths (m) 

          

<5.5
m 

5.5m 6m <7.3m >7.3m Ste
ps 

c/wa
y 

f/w’s Layb
y 
 

total 

Cwrt 
Aneurin 
Bevan – 
Town Ward  

 3631     399 S38 16 36 Aug 22  5.5 2 x 
1.8m 

 9.1 

Hilltop 
Close –  
Treharris 
Ward 

90m 657     90 APC/
228 

3 5 Aug 22  5.5 1.8 1 8.3 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

 
 

P
age 38



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Transforming Towns Programme for Merthyr 
Tydfil: Placemaking Grant Programme  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The Placemaking Plan was endorsed by Full Council at the Council Committee 

Meeting on 12th September 2020. 
 
1.2  In January 2020, Deputy Minister for Housing and Local Government, Hannah 

Blythyn MS, announced the Transforming Towns package ‘including measures to 
increase footfall by making sure the public sector locate services in Town Centre 
locations, tackle empty buildings and land to help bring them back into use, and 
greening our Town Centres’. 

 
1.3 A series of applications will be submitted as and when projects are developed in line 

with the aims and objectives of the Placemaking Plan. 
 
1.4  The Placemaking Grant affords Local Authority partners in Wales the broadest and 

most flexible package of support aimed at revitalising Town Centres throughout 
Wales.   

 
1.5 £10m was available for South East Wales and each Local Authority was invited to 

submit an application for funding against a framework of interventions including 
housing, green and digital infrastructure, transport as well as circular economy 
interventions. 

 
1.6 The funding is available over a three-year period April 2022 to March 2025 and was 

a competitive process for all ten South East Wales authorities.  
 

Date Written 18th October 2022  

Report Author Zoe Thomas / Chris Long  

Service Area Community Regeneration  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non-Exempt  

Committee Date 9th November 2022  

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



1.7 The Placemaking Programme for Merthyr Tydfil for delivery over the next three years 
will focus primarily on the creation of residential units within the Town Centre and the 
delivery of commercial property improvement grants.  Both interventions have been 
identified as a priority within the application as these interventions are where the 
identified gaps are in relation to the regeneration of the Town Centre.   

 
1.8 Projects will be developed and submitted to Welsh Government for endorsement 

over the Placemaking Grant Programme period. 
 
1.9 £618,298 has been secured by the Council through the Placemaking Grant 

Programme.  The match funding will be provided by the private sector as a ‘client 
contribution’ to the grant secured.  

  
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Merthyr Tydfil Strategic Valley Hub: Placemaking Plan 2019 - 2035 was 

commissioned by Merthyr Tydfil CBC, Welsh Government and Transport for Wales. 
It provides a plan for Merthyr Tydfil that is based on a shared ambition for the town 
and its role within the Capital City Region. 

 
2.2  The Placemaking Plan was endorsed by Full Council at the Council Committee 

Meeting on 12th September 2020.  
 
2.3  In January 2020, Deputy Minister for Housing and Local Government, Hannah 

Blythyn MS, announced the Transforming Towns package ‘including measures to 
increase footfall by making sure the public sector locate services in Town Centre 
locations, tackle empty buildings and land to help bring them back into use, and 
greening our Town Centres’. 

 
2.4  It was announced ‘to help breathe new life into Town Centres, the Welsh 

Government is unveiling a new ‘Town Centre First’ approach.  To support this new 
approach, the Welsh Government announced a £90 million investment to transform 
Wales’ Town Centres’.   

 
2.5  The Transforming Towns package has provided Merthyr Tydfil CBC with the 

opportunity to secure funding for the delivery of projects linked to the Placemaking 
Plan.   

 
2.6  A series of applications will be submitted as and when projects are developed in line 

with the aims and objectives of the Placemaking Plan.   
 

3.0 PLACEMAKING GRANT PROGRAMME  
 
3.1 The Placemaking Grant affords Local Authority partners in Wales the broadest and 

most flexible package of support aimed at revitalising Town Centres throughout 
Wales.  It is the responsibility of regional partners to decide upon the most 
appropriate mix of interventions and how they are deployed effectively.   

 

Page 40



3.2  £10m was available for South East Wales and each Local Authority was invited to 
submit an application for funding against a framework of interventions including 
housing, green and digital infrastructure, transport as well as circular economy 
interventions.  

 
3.3 The funding is available over a three-year period April 2022 to March 2025 and was 

a competitive process for all ten South East Wales authorities.  
 
3.4 Any funding allocated through the Placemaking Grant Programme was to be 

considered as funding of last resort with all other funding streams to support key 
interventions being explored in the first instance.  

 
3.5 The Placemaking Programme for Merthyr Tydfil for delivery over the next three years 

will focus primarily on the creation of residential units within the Town Centre and the 
delivery of commercial property improvement grants.  Both interventions have been 
identified as a priority within this application as these interventions are where the 
identified gaps are in relation to the regeneration of the Town Centre.   

 
3.6 The properties aligned to the two interventions identified above, residential and 

commercial grants, are all privately owned therefore the authority will be utilising this 
programme to support the private sector re-develop vacant properties within the 
Town Centre, ensuring they are brought back into use via the creation of fit for 
purpose, sustainable solutions.  Both interventions will support the reduction in 
vacancy rates and increase footfall across the Town.  Green infrastructure will be a 
key consideration of each project and will be encouraged where applicable.  

 
3.7 The Merthyr Tydfil Strategic Valley Hub: Placemaking Plan 2019 - 2035 identified a 

number of constraints that the Town Centre faces including floorspace on upper 
floors within the Town Centre being underused and that there is failing demand for 
retail within the Town Centre.  The Placemaking Grant is providing the opportunity 
for the Council to consider the long-term sustainable use of vacant premises within 
the Town Centre reducing vacancy rates, increasing footfall and increasing the 
demand for needed commercial and residential space.  This will support the 
opportunity to attract people to live, visit and work in the Town Centre. 

 
3.8  It has been identified that the gap in provision within the Town Centre from a funding 

perspective are for projects costed at around £150k - £500k.  The Regeneration 
Team have identified a number of projects which exceed £500k which have been 
identified for delivery through the Transforming Towns Strategic Programme and the 
development / support element for key projects identified within the Merthyr Tydfil 
Strategic Valley Hub: Placemaking Plan can be supported through the Transforming 
Towns Development Funding.  There are also opportunities through the WG funded 
loans programmes both commercial and residential, where applicable and affordable 
as part of the overall business plan / model.   

 
3.9 The Shared Prosperity Programme will cover a number of interventions identified 

within the Placemaking Grant Framework of Interventions, including delivery of 
projects identified within the Town Centre Digital Strategy, Town Centre Market 
Provision and meanwhile / test trading opportunities.  There are also capital 

Page 41



opportunities to support small-medium scale projects through the Merthyr Tydfil 
Capital Programme. 

 
3.10 The priority for the Placemaking Programme for Merthyr Tydfil last financial year was 

the commercial and residential grants which has had a positive impact on the Town 
Centre that the Council wish to continue.  The previously funded projects have made 
a positive contribution towards the Town Centre, supporting the re-development of 
vacant properties, attracting new businesses to the Town and enhancing the evening 
economy.   

 
3.11 Projects will be developed and submitted to Welsh Government for endorsement 

over the Placemaking Grant Programme period.  
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 £618,298 has been secured by the Council through the Placemaking Grant 

Programme which is an indicative proportion across the region.  The match funding 
will be provided by the private sector as a ‘client contribution’ to the grant secured.  

 
4.2 The financial implications for the local authority are to provide match funding of 

£50,000.  This has been secured through the Merthyr Tydfil Capital Programme for 
the next three years and will be utilised for ‘professional fees / development costs’ to 
progress the schemes and ensure they are supported in readiness for delivery.   

 
5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
5.1 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

 3 of 4 0 of 4 1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development Principles 
- How have you considered the five 
ways of working? 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
2 of 10 

 

 
0 of 10 

 

 
8 of 10 

 

4. Socio-economic Disadvantage  
0 of 6 

 

 
0 of 6 

 

 
6 of 6 

 

5. Consultation and Engagement 
Undertaken 

Due to be 
Undertaken 

Not Required 

1 of 1 0 of 1 
 

0 of 1 
 

Page 42



6. Data and Evidence to inform the 
proposal 

Yes No 

 
 1 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

7. Biodiversity and the resilience of 
Ecosystems 

Maintained Enhanced Reduced 
Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

 
1 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

Summary 

The main positive 
impacts are: 

The main positive impacts are that the Placemaking Grant will support 
Well-being Objectives and Sustainable Development Principles through 
targeting economic growth with a focus on the long-term sustainability of 
the Town Centre.  The project will have a positive effect on the economy, 
socially and on heritage.  

The main negative 
impacts are: 

No negative impacts have been identified. 
 

 
 
ALYN OWEN  
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

GERAINT THOMAS  
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL /  

CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING AND 
REGENERATION    

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET  - INFORMATION REPORT  
 

 

 

 

 

Aspire Shared Apprenticeship Programme and 
funding from the Cardiff Capital Region 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report gives an overview of the successes of the Aspire Shared Apprenticeship 

Programme and the most recent engagement and funding from the Cardiff Capital 
Region.  

 
1.2 The report provides information in relation to a new regional role which is in part a 

new opportunity to build and roll out the success of the programme in a wider 
regional programme. 

 
1.3 The Regional Officer will look at engaging with various businesses from a wide range 

of sectors to ascertain what level of interest there would be to partake on the Shared 
Apprenticeship Model.  This would be undertaken using the skillset of the Aspire 
team, prospective regional officer and utilising the success of past and present 
delivery as a positive example.  This will be resonated in addition to the support and 
confidence of the Cardiff Capital Region and existing Welsh Government support. 

 
1.4 This report will share information on a new funding source through Cardiff Capital 

Region in partnership with Blaenau Gwent which will enable MTCBC to recruit a 
Regional Officer as part of City Deal Funding. 

 
1.5 Total funding of £50,083 has been approved to allow the Aspire programme to start 

the recruitment process for the officer in line with its regional partners. 
 

 
 
 

Date Written 25th October 2022 

Report Author Jared Green/Deb Ryan Newton/Chris Long  

Service Area Housing & Community Regeneration 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 9th November 2022 

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Aspire Shared Apprenticeship model has been a successful operation across 

Blaenau Gwent and Merthyr Tydfil for the last 7 and 5 years respectively.  In that 
time over 130 young people have been recruited onto the programme over the two 
local authorities. 

 
2.2 Welsh Government initially supported an Aspire Shared Apprenticeship Programme 

within Blaenau Gwent in 2015 and as a result of its success, in 2017, funded the 
project in Merthyr Tydfil.  Welsh Government continue to provide 100% of the 
funding for the Aspire programme and this is done so on an annual basis and 
reviewed accordingly.  

 
2.3 Shared Apprenticeship Programmes, such as Aspire, employs apprentices and they 

are hosted by a business/organisation (known as host employers).  The Aspire 
Programme, along with the Host Employers, support apprentices within the 
workplace, giving them hands on experience of the industry between multiple hosts 
via rotations if required.  The uniqueness of the rotations has ensured that each 
young person has an opportunity to fulfil the learning pathway within a variation of 
employers. 

  
2.4 The programme is managed by a team within each local authority and supported by 

the mentors which is in addition to their work-based learning provider. 
 
2.5 The programme is continuing to build momentum year on year and is seeking to 

provide aspirational opportunities for young people across the heads of the Valley.  
 
2.6 Aspire engages with local businesses to fulfil skills gaps and supports them with 

employment and training needs within the Advanced Manufacturing & Digital Sector.  
 
2.7  In terms of its recognition, the programme won ‘large employer of the year’ at the 

National Apprenticeship Awards Cymru in 2019 & the 2021 awards. 
 
2.8 The delivery and implementation of Shared Apprenticeships throughout South East 

Wales has been reinforced by the current Minister and his endorsement of the new 
Apprenticeship Strategy to address the priorities of:  

 

 Responding to employer needs through a shared apprenticeship programme.  

 Supporting delivery within STEM pathways including digital and technical 
subjects. 

 Progression to higher and degree apprenticeship opportunities. 

 Addressing market failure in regard to Traditional Apprenticeship routes. 

 Discussions are underway with WG to broaden the parameters regarding sector 
engagement. 

 
2.9 Regarding the programmes momentum and success, discussions have taken place 

with the Head of Business Development & Inclusive Growth within the Cardiff City 
Region (CCR) to explore the expansion of Aspire across the whole of the South East 
Wales Region (10 Local Authorities). 

 

Page 46



2.10 As a result of the positive discussions, Cardiff City Region (CCR) have agreed to 
provide funding for 2 Regional Officers across Blaenau Gwent and Merthyr Tydfil. 
The finance has been approved by CCR and the allocated funding for the role is 
£44,093.89 for staff costs and then £6,000.00 for in direct costs for set up, staff travel 
and supplies and services etc.  

 
2.11 The CCR funding will allow Aspire to reach out across the Cardiff City Region to 

expand the programme and services to businesses alike.  In addition, offering 
support and potential opportunities to the Venture Graduate programme through 
regional employer engagement. 

 
2.12 A staffing structure has been designed to ensure there is coordination and the main 

attributes of the programme are considered equally across South East Wales, not 
least in the two authorities where the programme has demonstrated success.  

 
2.13 It is proposed Blaenau Gwent / Merthyr Tydfil Teams will recruit the additional Team 

members for a fixed Term basis (12 months from Appointment) funded through and 
supported by CCR. 

 
2.14 Regular updates, reports and communications with the Head of Business 

Development along with the Skills & Talent Lead - CCR will take place throughout 
the year to ensure business engagement and opportunities are fulfilled, with a full-
scale report being produced on the potential roll out of the Aspire model across the 
South East Wales region. 

 

3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 BGCBC will be the grant recipient via CCR and MTCBC will report to them with 

outputs etc and all financial information will be provided to BGCBC as part of our 
agreed management reporting framework.  

 
3.2 As noted in 2.10 the total grant approved by CCR is a total of £50,093, which 

represents 100% of the delivery costs for this additional resource. 
 
3.3 The current funding for the academic year 2022/23 is £150,000.  
 

4.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

4.1 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Neutral / Not 
Applicable 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 
 

4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development Principles 
- How have you considered the five 
ways of working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

Page 47



3. Protected Characteristics (including 
Welsh Language) 

 
10 of 10 0 of 10 0 of 10 

4. Socio-economic Disadvantage 
 

3 of 6 0 of 6 3 of 6 

5. Consultation and Engagement 
Undertaken 

Due to be 
Undertaken 

Not Required 

 
 

1 of 1 1 of 1 0 of 1 

6. Data and Evidence to inform the 
proposal 

Yes No 

 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 

7. Biodiversity and the resilience of 
Ecosystems 

Maintained Enhanced Reduced 
Neutral / 

N/A 

 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary 
 

The main positive 
impacts are: 
 

The regional roll out will see how the CCR regions want to engage on the 
Shared Apprenticeship Model.  The backing from CCR and their 
eagerness to sit this under the Venture umbrella shows great belief and 
commitment from them.  WG are also on board with this and encourage 
our new developments.  The impact on WBL providers, Colleges and of 
course individuals/potential apprentices is huge, and would have a 
positive economic impact on the communities engaged. 
 

The main negative 
impacts are:  
 

There are no negative impacts. 

 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL /  

CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING AND 
REGENERATION    

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 
 

Page 48



Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14,16 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 16 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Corporate Well-being Plan, Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan and Self-Assessment Report
	4 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2022/23 - Quarter 2
	5 Temporary Change To Council’s Mileage Rate
	Appendix 1

	6 Highways Adoptions
	7 Transforming Towns Programme for Merthyr Tydfil: Placemaking Grant Programme
	8 Aspire Shared Apprenticeship Programme and funding from the Cardiff Capital Region
	11 Street Cleansing Service Transformation
	12 Former Llysfaen Respite Home, Maesygarreg, Cefn Coed
	Appendix 1


